
DECC BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING 

Senator Sam Solon Board Room 
Wednesday, December 14, 2021 

4:00 PM to 5:00 PM 

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
A. Agenda
B. Regular Board Meeting Minutes – November 17, 2021
C. Finance Statements – October 2021

III. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT
A. Operational highlights

IV. COMMITTEE REPORTS
A. Executive

i. Update
B. Finance

i. Update
C. Governance

i. Update
D. Personnel

i. Update

V. OLD BUSINESS

VI. NEW BUSINESS
A. Officer Elections
B. DECC Authority Bylaws – redlined changes

VII. Other

VIII. ADJOURNMENT

IX. UPCOMING MEETINGS
The next regular business meeting is scheduled for Wednesday January 26, 2022 at
11:30 AM. Location: Senator Sam Solon Board Room.



DECC BOARD REPORT 
December 2021

• Minutes
• October Finance Statements
• DECC Authority Bylaws - Redlined

DECC Board Packet | 2



DULUTH ENTERTAINMENT AND CONVENTION CENTER AUTHORITY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

November 17, 2021       

A Regular Board Meeting was held Wednesday, November 17, 2021 in the Senator Sam Solon 
Board Room. 

Board Members Present: 
Chair Patrick Mullen 
Vice Chair Lynne Williams 
Secretary Mary Finnegan 
Peter Singler 
Bill Nelson 
Carrie Heffernan 
Laura Mullen 
Martha Bremer 
Don Ness 
Matthew Baumgartner 
Jason Vincent 

Board Members Absent: 

DECC Staff Present: 
Dan Hartman 
Caty Kaups 
Lucie Amundsen 
Ronni Murphy 

Others Present: 
Media 

Chair Patrick Mullen called the meeting to order at 11:32 AM. A quorum of directors was present. 

Approval of Consent Agenda 
The consent agenda included the meeting agenda and meeting minutes from the regular 
meeting on October 27, 2021. MOTION to approve the consent agenda requested by Chair P. 
Mullen; motion made by Nelson and seconded by L. Mullen. Motion unanimously carried.   

Executive Director Report 

Operational Highlights:  
1. Hartman shared that the DECC surpassed the previous all-time attendance record for the

Haunted Ship.

Heffernan joined at 11:45 AM. 

2. Hartman presented a photo summary of recent and upcoming events hosted at the DECC.
3. Hartman reviewed media highlights.

DECC Board Packet | 3



Ness joined at 11:58 AM. 

4. No updates regarding the beverage contract.
5. Update provided regarding event scheduling and Delta variant impacts.
6. Cruise ship facility documentation is currently under legal review.

Committee Reports 
Executive:  

- The Officer nomination slate was announced, and will be voted on during the December
Board meeting:

o Chair – Lynne Williams
o Vice Chair – Peter Singler
o Secretary – Matthew Baumgartner

- A recommendation was provided to create a matrix of Board Member terms for reference.

Finance: 
- The committee reviewed and adopted the 2022 budget.
- The adopted budget will be presented at the City Council meeting on December 6, 2021.

Governance: 
- The committee continues to review Board Member term start and end dates.
- Williams scheduled a meeting with Hartman and Murphy to receive updates related to the 

implementation of the organization policy library.
- Board Members can expect to receive a copy of the Bylaws for review at the December 

or January Regular Board Meeting.

Personnel: 
- The committee is scheduled to meet in November and will begin planning the Executive

Director review process and 2022 performance objectives.

Strategic Planning: 
- No updates to report, this ad hoc committee has been dissolved.

Old Business 
No old business. 

New Business 
No new business. 

Other 
Hartman presented the 2022 Regular Board Meeting Schedule as included in the Board Packet. 

Hartman walked Board Members around the DECC facilities to tour facility needs including but 
not limited to: the DECC Arena ice plant chiller, the boiler room, the DECC HVAC system, and a 
DECC power transformer.   

Adjournment 

DECC Board Packet | 4



Chair P. Mullen requested a motion to adjourn. The meeting adjourned at 12:42 PM.  
 
Upcoming Meetings 
The next regular meeting will be held December 14, 2021 at 4:00 PM. Location: Senator Sam 
Solon Board Room.  
 
Minutes reported by Ronni Murphy, Office and Project Manager. 
 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
 
________________________                          ________________________  
Patrick Mullen, Chair      Mary Finnegan, Secretary 

DECC Board Packet | 5



DECC Board Packet | 6



DECC Board Packet | 7



DECC Board Packet | 8



DECC Board Packet | 9



DECC Board Packet | 10



DECC Board Packet | 11



DECC Board Packet | 12



DECC Board Packet | 13



DECC Board Packet | 14



DECC Board Packet | 15



DECC Board Packet | 16



DECC Board Packet | 17



DECC Board Packet | 18



Proposed Bylaws Edits Noted Below 
12-6-2021 

 
Summary of proposed changes:  

● slight broadening to the reference that the annual meeting occur in August - 
we added "or another meeting around August" 

● suggestion to remove the personnel committee from the bylaws - the scope 
if narrow, Peter Singler is in support of this idea, it will allow for more space 
for ad hoc committees 

● breaking "secretary/treasurer" into "secretary and/or treasurer" just 
because we do have the option to split those if we wanted to down the road 

● adding " as delegated and approved by the chair or vice-chair" to the 
weekly check distribution to align with state statute language. 

 
 
 
 

BYLAWS 
 

DULUTH ENTERTAINMENT AND CONVENTION CENTER AUTHORITY 
DULUTH, MINNESOTA  

2020 
 
 
 

ARTICLE I.  NAME AND PURPOSE 
Section 1 Name 
The Duluth Entertainment and Convention Center Authority (DECC) 
 
Laws of Minnesota, 1963, Chapter 305 created the Duluth Arena-Auditorium Board. Section 5, Subdivision 2 
conferred the power and duty to contract for and superintend the erection, construction, equipping, and furnishing 
of such arena-auditorium as a municipal facility. The board consisted of seven directors. 
 
Laws of Minnesota, 1985, Chapter 15, Section 36 renamed the Board the Duluth State Convention Center 
Administrative Board. The legislation added four members to be appointed by the Governor. 
 
Laws of Minnesota, 1998, Chapter 364 changed the name to the Duluth Entertainment and Convention Center 
(DECC) Authority.  
 
 
Section 2 Purpose and Mission  
The DECC Authority’s mission statement, as defined by the Board of Directors: The DECC is committed to 
providing a multi-dimensional entertainment and convention facility with high quality integrated support services 
that will maximize the economic and social benefit to our business community, our investors, our clients and our 
customers. The method used to accomplish the mission will revolve around: providing a consistently high level of 
customer service; operating in a fiscally responsible manner; recognizing our obligation as public entity; providing 
a well-maintained facility that is a source of pride to our community; insisting on excellence in all aspects of Duluth 
Entertainment and Convention Center operations, including safety of the public and employees; providing broad 
public access to facility and events; and engaging in partnership with community businesses. 

DECC Board Packet | 19



 
 ARTICLE II. MEMBERSHIP 

The members of the DECC Authority shall be known as Board of Directors and shall be those persons who have 
been duly appointed and qualified in accordance with the enabling legislation. The board is an eleven-person body 
composed of seven (7) Mayoral appointed directors, appointed by the Mayor of Duluth for a three-year term, and 
four (4) Governor appointed directors, appointed by the Governor of the State of Minnesota for a four-year term. 
Each director shall serve until a successor is appointed at the discretion of the appointing authority and takes office.  
 

ARTICLE III. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Section 1 Powers and Duties of the Board 
The powers and duties of the Board of Directors are as set forth in the enabling legislation. 
 
The Board of Directors shall oversee management of the business, property and affairs of the organization, and 
may exercise and delegate any and all of the powers of the organization as it sees fit, subject only to restrictions 
imposed by statute and these bylaws. The Board of Directors shall appoint, direct and evaluate the Executive 
Director.  The Board shall also establish governance level policies; oversee operational goals and objectives; 
emphasize overall planning; adopt the budget; establish board committees; and authorize meetings.  
 
 
 
 
Section 2 Attendance  
All directors shall be expected to attend all regular meetings of the board. If a director cannot attend the regular 
meeting, they shall notify the Chair or staff proxy to be excused from the meeting. A director who is absent for six 
excused or three unexcused meetings within a twelve month period shall be considered to have failed to fulfill 
their responsibilities and notice of shall be forward to the appointing authority. 
 
Section 2a  Electronic Meeting Attendance 
Directors of the board or any committee designated by the board may participate as a voting member in a 
meeting of such board or committee by means of conference telephone, video conference, or similar 
communications equipment by which all persons participating in the meeting can communicate with one another. 
Participation in a meeting pursuant to this section shall constitute presence at such meeting. 
 
Section 2b  Resignations, Termination and Absences 
Resignation from the board must be in writing and received by the Board Chair and appointing authority. Directors 
may be excused from attendance upon notification to the Board Chair prior to the scheduled meeting. Directors 
are expected to attend Board of Director and committee meetings. Excessive absences may be forwarded to 
appointing authority for a review of appointment.  

 
Section 3 Compensation  
The directors shall serve without compensation, but may be reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses required in 
the fulfillment of their duties in accordance with procedures established by resolution of the board. 
 
Section 4 Quorum 
A quorum will consist of six (6) participating members of the Board of Directors. A quorum of the Board of 
Directors must be present to conduct official business but a less number may adjourn from time to time. No 
resolution of the board shall be deemed lawfully adopted unless it shall have received the affirmative vote of not 
less than six (6) directors present and voting. 
 
Section 5 Meetings 
The DECC Authority board shall hold a regular meeting each month with at least five (5) days advance notice of 
date, time, and place to all directors and the City Clerk and notice consistent with the State of Minnesota open 
meeting law (M.S., Chapter 13D.04, Subd. 1, Minnesota Open Meeting Law.) An annual schedule of meetings 
shall be distributed to the board for the following year at or before the December meeting. 
 

DECC Board Packet | 20



The DECC Authority shall keep minutes of its Board of Director meetings, which shall be a public record. Special 
meetings of the board may be called by the Chair or upon request of any six (6) directors. Three (3) days written 
notice of all special meetings shall be given and such notice shall specify the time and place of such meeting and 
the business to the transacted thereat pursuant to M.S., Chapter 13D.04, Subd. 2, Minnesota Open Meeting Law. 
Only such business as is designated in the notice of a special meeting shall be transacted at such a meeting. 
Records of proceedings are governed under M.S., Chapter 13, Government Data Practices Act. 
 
The regular August board meeting, or another meeting around August, shall be the annual meeting of the board 
with the purpose of reviewing the organizational strategic plan and adopting an annual plan outlining measurable 
goals for the year ahead. 
 
Section 6 Agendas 
The Board Chair shall set the agenda in consultation with the Executive Director. Any board member may submit 
items for consideration to the Board Chair. Amendments to the proposed agenda may be passed by a majority 
vote of the Board of Directors.    
 
Section 7 Notice of Meetings 
Written notice stating the place, date and hour of any regular meeting of the Board of Directors shall be delivered 
personally, electronically, or by mail to each director with a minimum of five (5) days notice and governed by 
Minnesota open meeting law. 
 
Section 8 Vacancies 
Vacancies on the Board of Directors are filled by an appointing authority (Mayor of Duluth or Governor of 
Minnesota) as set forth in the enabling legislation. The Governance Committee, on behalf of the Board of 
Directors, may submit a letter of request to the appointing authority for consideration of specific sector experience 
or skill sets that may enhance DECC business.  

 
ARTICLE IV.  OFFICERS 

Section 1  General 
The Officers of the DECC Authority Board of Directors shall be the Board Chair, Board Vice-Chair and Board 
Secretary and/or /Treasurer. Each officer of this authority shall be a member of the Executive Committee of the 
Board of Directors. 

 
Section 2  Election and Terms of Office 
The Board Chair shall be elected for a one-year term and not serve more than two (2) consecutive full one-year 
terms. No one person may hold more than one office at the same time. Election of the Board of Directors’ officers 
shall take place in December. 
 
Section 3  Resignation and Removal 
Whenever, in the judgment of the Board of directors, the best interests of the organization will be served, any 
officer may be removed from their officer position by the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the Board of Directors. 
Any officer may resign at any time by delivering a written resignation to the Chair or the board 
Secretary/Treasurer. 
 
Section 4  Vacancies 
In the event a vacancy occurs in any officer's position, it shall be filled in the following manner until the next 
annual election: 

1. Chair – The Vice-Chair shall assume the office. 
2. In case of vacancy in the office of both Chair and Vice-Chair, the duties of the Chair shall be performed 

by the Secretary/Treasurer, until replacements are elected by the board. 
3. The Board of Directors shall elect replacements for all other vacancies. 

 
Section 5  Duties and Responsibilities of Officers 
The officers shall possess such powers and perform such duties as shall be determined by the Board of Directors. 
 

a. The Board Chair shall: 

DECC Board Packet | 21



▪ Preside at all meetings of the membership and all meetings of the Board of Directors and 
the Executive Committee; 

▪ Ensure  notification of regular meetings of the DECC and calling special meetings as 
appropriate; 

▪ Appoint committee assignments and related chair; 
▪ Ensure that the work of the Board of Directors is carried out; 
▪ Represent the DECC Board and act as its official spokesperson where and when 

appropriate; 
▪ Oversee board development of 3-5 year strategic plan, administer on-going plan 

management and schedule the DECC board annual plan which includes DECC business 
goals and objectives aligning with annual budget, and 

▪ Oversee the strategic plan and plan management. 
▪ Perform other duties customary to the Board Chair, or as directed by the Board of 

Directors, and 
▪ Be an ex-officio non-voting member of all committees. 
 

b. The Board Vice-Chair shall: 
▪ Perform such duties as the Chair and/or the Board of Directors may determine, and 
▪ In the absence of the Chair, shall perform the duties of the Chair.  

 
c. The Board Secretary and/or Treasurer shall: 

▪ Oversee notice and maintenance of the minutes of the meetings the Board of Directors, 
(with staff support); 

▪ Approve by signature the minutes of all meetings as recorded by DECC staff; 
▪ Serve on the Board of Directors’ Executive Committee;  
▪ Perform other duties customary to the Board Secretary/Treasurer and as may be 

required by the Board of Directors or the Board Chair; 
▪ Serve as Chair of the Finance Committee; 
▪ Disburse the funds of the DECC Authority as approved by the Board of Directors; 
▪ Provide such financial reports and statements as the Board of Directors or Executive 

Committee may from time to time require or request;  
▪ Supervise the keeping and auditing of the accounts which shall be open at all times to 

inspection by the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee, and 
▪ Sign weekly disbursement checks, as delegated and approved by the chair or vice-chair. 

 
ARTICLE V.  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

 
The Executive Director shall: 

● Execute responsibilities as outlined in their current contract; 
● Be appointed by the Board of Directors and shall serve as the salaried chief executive of 

the DECC Authority; 
● Report to the Board Chair and DECC Authority. 

 
ARTICLE VI.  COMMITTEES 

Section 1 Committee formation 
The board may create committees as needed. The Board Chair appoints all committee chairs from the 
membership of the board. Limited term task forces may be appointed by the Board Chair at any time with 
approval by the Executive Committee; standing and longer term committees shall be created with the affirmation 
of majority vote of the board. All board members are to serve on at least one committee. A minimum of three (3) 
members should serve on each committee. The following are standing committees of the board: 

 
Section 2 Executive Committee 
Board officers serve as the members of the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee is tasked with 
initiating and monitoring the implementation of a 3-5 year strategic plan. An annual plan will be adopted by the 
Board of Directors that aligns with the strategic plan. 
 

DECC Board Packet | 22



Section 3 Finance Committee 
The Board Secretary/Treasurer is the chair of the Finance Committee, which has a minimum of three (3) 
members. The Finance Committee is responsible for developing and reviewing fiscal procedures and an annual 
budget with staff and other board members. The Finance Committee reviews the financials with the Executive 
Director and Finance Director in advance of DECC board meetings. The Finance Committee shall also monitor 
the annual audit process.  

Section 4 Governance 
The Governance committee shall have a minimum of three (3) members. The committee will be responsible for 
updating DECC Authority bylaws, policies, and procedures. The Board Vice-Chair shall serve as an ex-officio 
member of this committee. The Governance Committee on behalf of the Board of Directors may submit a letter of 
request to the appointing authority to give some consideration to specific sector experience or skill sets for future 
board appointments that may enhance DECC Authority business. The committee shall be responsible for 
nominating a slate of DECC Board Directors and officers for consideration by the full board on an annual basis.   

Section 5 Personnel Committee 
The Personnel Committee shall include a minimum of three (3) members. The committee is responsible for 
overseeing the hiring of an Executive Director, negotiating and executing an employment contract and setting a 
process with outcomes and measurables for an annual performance review of the Executive Director. The 
Committee will design a formal evaluation of the Executive Director on an annual basis including Board of 
Directors’ participation and feedback. The committee will serve as support and counsel for the Executive Director. 
The Committee will review employment policies to insure they comply with applicable laws and regulations. 

ARTICLE VII. PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY 
Section 1 Fiscal Year 
The designated fiscal year of this corporation shall be January 1st to December 31st. 

Section 2 Parliamentary Authority 
The most recent edition of Robert’s Rules of Order shall serve as the parliamentary authority for the organization. 

Section 3 Interpretation of Bylaws 
Wherever possible, these bylaws shall be construe as consistent with the enabling legislation. Any provisions of 
these bylaws which are inconsistent with any provision of said enabling legislation shall be null and void. 

ARTICLE VIII.  AMENDMENTS 
The Governance Committee shall review the bylaws annually. In order to amend the bylaws, notice of the 
proposed amendment shall be delivered personally, electronically or by mail to each member of the DECC 
Authority at least 30 days prior to the time of the vote on the proposed amendment. The bylaws shall be amended 
by a 2/3 vote of the DECC Authority at any special or regular meeting of the board. 

ARTICLE IX.  CONFLICT OF INTERESTS 
Any director, officer, key employee or committee member having an existing or potential interest in a contract or 
other transaction presented to the Board of Directors or a committee for deliberation, authorization, approval or 
ratification or any such person who reasonably believes such an interest exists in another such person, shall 
make a prompt, full, and frank disclosure or the interest to the Board of Directors or committee prior to its acting 
on such contract or transaction. The interested party is required to disclose the nature and extent of such interest 
and any relevant and material facts known to them about the contract or transaction which might reasonably be 
construed to be adverse to the DECC’s interest and shall abstain from any related vote being taken. 

ARTICLE X.  NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY 

Pursuant to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975, the DECC Authority recruits, employs, assigns and promotes staff, terminates 

DECC Board Packet | 23



employment, accepts volunteers and determines rates of pay and other benefits without discrimination on the 
basis of age, gender, sexual orientation, disability, ethnic identity, religion or creed. 

 
ARTICLE XI.  INDEMNIFICATION 

Section 1  General 
Unless expressly prohibited by law, the DECC Authority shall fully indemnify any person made, or threatened to 
be made, a party to an action, suit or proceeding (whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative) by reason 
of the fact that such person, or such person's testator or intestate, is or was a director, officer, employee or agent 
of the DECC Authority or serves or served any other enterprise at the request of the DECC Authority, against all 
expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid or to be paid in settlement incurred in 
connection with such action, suit or proceeding. 
 
Section 2  Limitation of Liability 
Officers, directors and other persons who perform services for the corporation and who do not receive 
compensation other than reimbursement of expenses ("volunteers") shall be immune from civil liability. 
Additionally, persons regularly employed to perform a service for a salary or wage ("employees") shall not be held 
personally liable in damages for any action or omission in providing services or performing duties on behalf of the 
corporation in an amount greater than the amount of total compensation (other than reimbursement of expenses) 
received during the twelve (12) months immediately preceding the act or omission for which liability was imposed. 
Regardless of the amount of liability insurance maintained, this limitation of liability for volunteers and employees 
shall not apply when the injury or damage was a result of the volunteer or employee's willful misconduct, crime 
(unless the volunteer or employee had reasonable cause to believe that the act was lawful), transaction that 
resulted in an improper personal benefit of money, property or service to the volunteer or employee, or act or 
omission that was not in good faith and was beyond the scope of authority of the corporation pursuant to this act 
or the corporate charter. This limitation of liability shall not apply to any licensed professional employee operating 
in his or her professional capacity. The DECC Authority is liable only to the extent of the applicable limits of 
insurance coverage it maintains. 
 
 
Bylaws certified by DECC Authority Board of Directors: 
 
 
Dated:  _______________   _______________________________________ 
      Secretary/Treasurer DECC Board of Directors 
   
                                                                        
 
 
 
 
                                                                              ______________________________________ 
                                                                               Chair, DECC Board of Directors 
 

DECC Board Packet | 24


	Agenda - December 2021
	Packet Cover - Board Packet Overview
	Regular Board Meeting Minutes - November 17, 2021
	Oct 2021
	Oct 2021 Balance Sheet
	2022 DECC BY-LAWS
	ARTICLE II. MEMBERSHIP
	Dated:  _______________   _______________________________________




